
INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers - 8150 Barbara Avenue 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 20, 2015.

3. APPLICANT REQUESTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

3.01 JIM DEANOVIC (BLACKSTONE RIDGE) – CASE NO.15-28PUD 
Consider the request for a Final Plat and Final PUD Development Plan for 
Blackstone Ridge.  Property located on the north side of 70th Street, just east of 
Argenta Trail.   

Planning Commission Action _______________________________________ 

4. OTHER BUSINESS

5. ADJOURN

This document is available upon 3 business day request in alternate formats such as Braille, large print, 
audio recording, etc. Please contact Kim Fox at 651.450.2545 or kfox@invergroveheights.org  

mailto:kfox@invergroveheights.org


PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 

Tuesday, October 20, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Chambers - 8150 Barbara Avenue 

Commissioner Scales called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Dennis Wippermann 
Elizabeth Niemioja 
Bill Klein 
Tony Scales 
Armando Lissarrague 
Pat Simon 

Commissioners Absent: Joan Robertson (excused) 
Harold Gooch (excused) 
Annette Maggi (excused) 

Others Present: Allan Hunting, City Planner 
Tom Link, Community Development Director 
Steve Dodge, Assistant City Engineer 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The minutes from the October 6, 2015 Planning Commission meeting were approved as submitted. 

CASTAWAYS MARINA – CASE NO. 15-41CA 

Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for a conditional use 
permit amendment to allow for the parking and temporary storage of small boats and trailers in the 
south parking lot for the property located at 6140 Doffing Avenue.  3 notices were mailed. 

Presentation of Request 
Mr. Hunting explained the request as detailed in the report.  He advised that Castaways Marina is 
proposing to allow seasonal storage of trailers and boats over the winter in their south parking lot.  
The storage would be for Castaways customers and would be located over existing impervious 
surface.  He advised that Condition 4 is an existing condition that pertains only to the north parking 
lot.  Condition 3 is a new condition pertaining to the south parking lot.  One of the buildings just 
north of the south parking lot is anticipated to be demolished in the near future.  Mr. Hunting 
advised that the last time this conditional use permit was changed there was a condition restricting 
storage on the south parking lot.  Staff believes that restriction was not generated by the City, but 
rather was based on the applicant’s comments as storage areas are allowed on the other marinas. 
Staff supports the request with the conditions listed in the report.     

Opening of Public Hearing 
Mr. Hunting advised that the applicant planned to attend tonight’s meeting; however, he was not 
present.   

Commissioner Scales closed the public hearing. 

Planning Commission Recommendation 
Motion by Commissioner Klein to approve the request for a conditional use permit amendment to 
allow for the parking and temporary storage of small boats and trailers in the south parking lot for 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 2 
October 20, 2015 
 
 

the property located at 6140 Doffing Avenue.   
 
Commissioner Niemioja asked if the marina themselves could remove the boats and trailers from 
storage rather than the code enforcement officer.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the storage would be enforced by the marina themselves and members 
would be told when to have their items removed.  He advised that Condition 7 regarding the code 
enforcement officer was a standard condition for conditional use permits in case there was an 
issue.   
 
Commissioner Scales asked if staff was aware of storage issues with the other marinas. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied he was not. 
 
Second by Commissioner Wippermann. 
 
Motion carried (6/0).  This item goes to the City Council on October 26, 2015. 
 
 
JON SKOGH – CASE NO. 15-35V 
 
Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for a variance from the 
side yard setback to construct an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) in a detached garage, for the 
property located at 1355 – 96th Street.  5 notices were mailed.  
 
Presentation of Request  
Allan Hunting, City Planner, explained the request as detailed in the report.  He advised that the 
City Council recently adopted an ordinance to allow accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) on qualifying 
properties.  The applicant is requesting to convert an existing accessory structure into an ADU.  
Their plan is to add a dormer and create a second story, which would be the ADU.  This would 
increase the gross floor area to approximately 1,550 square feet, which would trigger the need for 
a variance to allow a 20 foot setback whereas 50 feet is required.  The majority of the property is 
identified as a regional basin in the City’s stormwater management plan.  The accessory structure 
is located at the edge of the basin area.  The building could not be moved away from the lot line to 
meet setbacks or it would have a negative impact on the stormwater basin.   Staff feels that the 
presence of the regional basin over a large portion of the property creates a physical practical 
difficulty that is unique to the property.  Staff recommends approval of the request with the 
conditions listed in the report. 
 
Commissioner Simon asked if the City Council determined whether or not the applicant would be 
required to hook up to the existing well and septic system.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied in the affirmative, stating the Skogh’s investigated this and found that it will 
work in their situation.   
 
Commissioner Simon asked for clarification regarding the setback for the proposed new deck.    
 
Mr. Hunting replied there were no setback issues with the deck in that it was considered an 
accessory to a structure rather than a structure.    
 
Opening of Public Hearing  
Jon Skogh, 1355 – 96th Street, advised that he was available to answer any questions.   



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 3 
October 20, 2015 
 
 

 
Commissioner Scales asked the applicant if he read and understood the report. 
 
Mr. Skogh replied in the affirmative.   
 
Commissioner Scales closed the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
Motion by Commissioner Niemioja, second by Commissioner Lissarrague, to approve the request 
for a variance from the side yard setback to construct an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) in a 
detached garage, for the property located at 1355 – 96th Street, with the practical difficulty as 
stated by staff and the conditions listed in Alternative A.   
 
Motion carried (6/0).  This item goes to the City Council on November 9, 2015.   
 
 
Mr. Hunting noted that a representative from Castaways Marina, Mr. Remington, was now present 
and available to answer any questions. 
 
Commissioner Scales advised Mr. Remington that his request was approved.   
 
There were no questions for Mr. Remington from the Planning Commission. 
    
 
IMH SPECIAL ASSET 175 – CASE NO. 15-21PUD 
 
Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for a preliminary plat 
and preliminary PUD development plan for a single-family, townhome, and apartment complex 
development to be known as Hannah Meadows, and a rezoning of the parcels to R-1/PUD in the 
Northwest Area Planned Unit Development, for the property located at the northeast corner of 
Robert Street and 70th Street.  14 notices were mailed.   
 
Presentation of Request 
Mr. Hunting explained the request as detailed in the report.  He advised that the Assistant City 
Engineer, Steve Dodge, was available to answer any questions regarding grading or stormwater.  
Mr. Hunting stated the applicant was proposing a preliminary plat consisting of 42 single-family 
lots, 36 townhome lots, a future 160-200 unit apartment building, and outlots for open space and 
stormwater ponding.  A rezoning will be required to change the zoning from A, Agriculture to R-
1C/PUD Single-Family Residential and R-3C/PUD Multiple Family Residential.  The net 
developable area is approximately 32.9 acres, excluding the proposed right-of-way for 70th Street, 
Highway 3, the future roundabout, and approximately 1.72 acres of wetlands.  Flexibility requests 
have been made for building separation, setbacks, and driveway width, and are outlined in the 
report.  Staff supports the requests for flexibility, noting that the amount of right-of way needed for 
the future roundabout is significantly wider than standard right-of-way needs.  The applicant is 
proposing two trails that connect to the collector street and to the property to the east; however, 
staff recommends that a trail be constructed on the west side of the development which provides 
an internal connection to the future trail along 70th Street and Highway 3.  Staff would like to see 
some modification to the final design of the collector street in order to provide better visibility.   
Dakota County and MnDOT have reviewed the plat and agree that it addresses the right-of-way 
needs for both agencies.  The wetland in the southeast corner of the site will be impacted by the 
city collector street; therefore a wetland mitigation plan will be required as part of the final PUD 
plans.  An additional condition, Condition 20, will be added stating that ‘At the time of final plat PUD 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 4 
October 20, 2015 
 
 

plan submittal, a wetland mitigation plan must also be submitted for the wetland disturbance.  The 
plan shall be approved by the city prior to work commencing for street construction.’  Staff 
recommends approval of the request and flexibility requests, with the addition of Condition 20 as 
stated.   
 
Commissioner Klein asked if the State had a plan for widening Robert Street.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied that to his knowledge there was no plan from MNDOT to widen Robert Street. 
 
Commissioner Klein asked what the County’s plans were for widening 70th Street.     
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the County was still reviewing those future roadway improvements, but the 
anticipation would be for 70th Street to become a four lane divided road to the Eagan border.  He 
advised that the proposed plat addresses the necessary right-of-way for that plan.     
 
Commissioner Simon asked if the Fire Marshall had commented on the lack of a road into and 
around the proposed apartment building.     
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the Fire Marshal reviewed the plat; however, he had not yet seen his final 
comments.  He added that additional access may be required with the final plat.   
 
Commissioner Simon asked if this would come back in phases for the final plat or as one approval.     
 
Mr. Hunting replied that if the preliminary plat was approved by City Council he would anticipate 
this to come back for the final plat in phases.     
 
Commissioner Wippermann stated he did not support the creation of small, narrow lots.  He asked 
what the benefits were to the City in return for allowing flexibility from the standard zoning code 
requirements (i.e. allowing 65’ wide lots versus 85’, 9,000 square foot lots versus 12,000 square 
foot, etc.).   
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the benefit to the City was getting open space and density.  He advised 
that this area of the city was purposely designed with no lot size or width requirements as it was 
known that flexibility would be needed in order to gain open space for ponding and the necessary 
density.  He noted that the standard zoning code does not require any open space for single-family 
residential and only minimal for multiple-family residential.     
 
Commissioner Klein stated this would also help pay the bonds for sewer and water extension.   
 
Mr. Hunting agreed, stating that unit density was an important factor in that equation.    
 
Opening of Public Hearing 
Tim Keenan, 7001 Scottsdale Road, advised that he was available to answer any questions, as 
well as representatives from Westwood Engineering and Kaas Wilson.     
 
Commissioner Scales asked the applicant if he read and understood the report. 
 
Mr. Keenan replied in the affirmative.   
 
Commissioner Lissarrague asked what the anticipated home prices would be. 
 
Mr. Keenan replied that the single-family homes would likely start in the low $400,000’s and 
townhomes would start at $240,000 or $250,000.   



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 5 
October 20, 2015 
 
 

 
Commissioner Klein asked if there would be any single-story townhomes in this development, 
stating there was a need for that product in Inver Grove Heights.     
 
Mr. Keenan replied that would be something they would consider; however, they had not yet 
chosen a homebuilder.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the applicant had a rendering of the style of home they expect 
to be building. 
 
Mr. Keenan replied he did not because the homebuilder had not yet been selected.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the proposed townhomes would be owner-occupied or rental. 
 
Mr. Keenan replied that most likely they would be owner-occupied; however, they have had 
discussions with the County regarding doing an affordable product with them.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked who would own and manage the proposed apartments. 
 
Mr. Keenan replied at this point their plan was to retain ownership of the apartments.   
 
Commissioner Lissarrague asked the applicant to address the concern regarding fire department 
access for the apartments.     
 
Ben Delwick, Kaas Wilson Architects, 1301 American Boulevard, Bloomington, showed a more 
recent plan for the apartments, which included additional access.  He advised they would likely add 
a hammerhead turn at the dead-end which normally was acceptable to city fire departments.   
 
Commissioner Klein advised that the plantings would be key to getting the fire trucks into that area. 
 
Mr. Delwick noted there were many grading challenges as well.   
 
Commissioner Scales closed the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
Motion by Commissioner Simon, second by Commissioner Klein, to approve the request for a 
preliminary plat and preliminary PUD development plan for a single-family, townhome, and 
apartment complex development to be known as Hannah Meadows, and a rezoning of the parcels 
to R-1C/PUD and R-3C/PUD, for the property located at the northeast corner of Robert Street and 
70th Street, with the conditions listed in the report and the addition of Condition 20, as previously 
stated. 
 
Motion carried (6/0).  This item goes to the City Council on October 26, 2015. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Mr. Hunting advised that the November 4, 2015 Planning Commission meeting has been 
cancelled.   
 
 
The meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 6 
October 20, 2015 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
Kim Fox  
Recording Secretary 
 




























































































	Agenda
	October 20, 2015 Draft Minutes
	Jim Deanovic 15-28PUD

